
  

Borough of Tenafly 
 

MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

MINUTES 
 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 
 
At 7:31 p.m. Mayor Rustin read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement: “In compliance with the 
Open Public Meetings Act P.L. 1975, chapter 231, the notice requirements have been satisfied. 
Meeting dates for the year are confirmed at the Annual Meeting, are posted on the public bulletin 
board in the lobby of the Municipal Center, published in the Record within the first 10 days of the 
New Year, and copies are sent to the Suburbanite and Northern Valley Press.”  
 
 Present: Mayor Peter S. Rustin  

 
Council members:  Anthony Barzelatto, Maxim Basch, Shama Haider, Daniel 

Park, Paul Stefanowicz and Mark Zinna 
 
   Borough Administrator: Jewel Thompson-Chin  
   Borough Attorney:  William R. McClure, Esq. 
     

Absent: None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Rustin read the following statement: 
 
Public Comments: A total of 15 minutes has been allocated for this purpose.  Citizens are welcome 
to address the Mayor and Council on any governmental item of concern to them, whether or not it is 
scheduled on the agenda below.  Citizens must give their names and addresses when recognized to 
speak.  Large groups are urged to select someone to represent them.  The public is advised that 
these meetings are recorded and are subject to the Open Public Records Act. 
 
Joanna Gambrill – Ravine Road – inquired as to whether the community center report was 
complete.  C. Zinna stated that it will be discussed next Tuesday. 
 
An Employee of Tenafly Gourmet stated her concern over the street fair.  She stated that she and 
her boss are worried about people parking in their lot.  She also stated that last year individuals 
walked through their parking lot, which she emphasized is dangerous and an expensive liability.  
Mayor Rustin advised her that she will have access from Piermont Road.  He also suggested to her 
to put up signage that states customers only.  He urged them to join the Chamber of Commerce to 
provide input regarding their business.    
 
TO BE CONSIDERED 
DPW Building Project Update 
Mrs. Thompson-Chin provided an update summary on the DPW building and stated that the 
progress was highly visible.  She provided the revised completion date, which she expected to be in 
the first quarter of 2017.  Mr. Culvert advised that the framework is done and the project is 
approximately 25 to 30 percent complete.  He noted that he hopes to meet the target date of 
February 2017.  She introduced Joe Frangiosa, of Arcari & Iovino.  Mr. Frangiosa explained that 
roof trusses are completed.  He mentioned that the roof still needs to be completed as well as 
plumbing and electrical work inside.  C. Basch questioned if there would be any changes to the 
cost.  Mrs. Thompson-Chin explained that there would be no cost changes to the overall budget.  
She stressed that the money would be reallocated from other line items.  She informed that an 
amendment site remediation needed to be done.  She added that administrative and design costs 
were also necessary.  Mrs. Thompson-Chin added that the contracts need to be extended to the 
revised completion date as well as amended to allow for additional cost.  She assured the Council 
that the bottom line is not impacted.  She advised that they are looking into reallocating 
$10,500.00.   
 
Janeen McDonald of Dedicated Project Services provided details on the cabling security system.  
She noted that they are also working on getting furniture and employee lockers installed.  Ms. 
McDonald stated that one last review is needed prior to getting Council’s approval.  C. Basch 
advised that he feels that the Borough is not getting the best deal.  He added that the only way to 
figure out if it’s the best deal is to hold a public bidding.  Mrs. Thompson-Chin explained that state 
contracts are done through bidding.  C. Basch emphasized that in the future he would like to hold a 



  

public bidding.  Ms. McDonald informed him that if this project were to go out to bid, an engineer 
would have to be hired to determine the exact specifications of the project.  Mayor Rustin 
questioned Ms. McDonald if this is the best method.  She confirmed that it is the best method.  She 
stated that this is the most effective and efficient way for the project to be accomplished as the 
materials are all volume discounted.  C. Basch inquired as to the process of getting the furniture.  
Ms. McDonald explained that the same type of furniture that was used in the Police Department will 
be placed in the DPW building, which she advised is a state contract.  Mayor Rustin emphasized 
that this is a bid from the state and noted that the state will provide a better price that a local 
company.  Mayor Rustin stated that Ms. McDonald’s function is to protect the Borough and to make 
sure everything runs efficiently and that everything is as cost effective as possible.              
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Mrs. Thompson-Chin reported on the following items: 
 

 The change was implemented to suspend the $25.00 employee hangtag for the rest of 2016.  
She added that she has already received a few requests for hangtags.  She added those who 
have previously paid, will get their money back once the tag is returned.  C. Park questioned 
if there is a fee for replacement tags.  The Administrator stated that the replacement tag 

costs $25.00.    
 

 Road paving bids will be submitted on September 15th.  C. Basch commented that at a prior 
meeting, it was discussed that the Borough would try to pick a vendor that ensured 100% 
new asphalt, rather than recycled asphalt.  Mrs. Thompson-Chin clarified that the Governing 
Body agreed to an alternate, which is incorporated in the bid specs.   

 

 The contract for Griffin Park was received.  The Mayor questioned whether the project would 
be completed before winter.  The Administrator stated that it was doubtful that it would be 
completed by winter; however they are going to try to finish before winter. 

 

 The protective bollards have been installed around the generator at the Senior Center.  Mayor 
Rustin would like the Administrator to provide the functionality and the level of power for the 
next meeting.  C. Basch remarked about putting a protective barrier to prevent people from 
tripping.  Mrs. Thompson-Chin informed him that funds would need to be allocated for that 
project.  She advised that she would review the issue.     

 

 The upcoming events include the New Residents Reception, which will take place on 
September 8th, 9/11 Ceremony, Tenafly Community Night and AHEPA Annual Car Show. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
Steven S. Simring    RE:  Request to replace fence 
Mayor Rustin stated that the owner’s property extends down a very steep hill to Mayflower Drive.  
The owner originally wanted to replace the fence, but was told that he could only repair it because it 
is on top of an easement.  Mayor Rustin noted that as long as he puts in stanchions and provides 
the Borough with a hold harmless, he will be able to replace the fence.  Mr. McClure will forward 
the hold harmless agreement to Mr. Simring. 
 
M. Catona and V. Semone   RE: Block Party Request – 9/17 rain date 9/18 
The Governing Body granted Ms. Catona and Ms. Semone their block party request.   
 
Teaneck Township Council  RE: Install Anti – Suicide Fencing Along Walkways    

                                                     of the George Washington Bridge 
Council agreed to move forward with the resolution to install anti-suicide fencing along the 
walkways of the George Washington Bridge. 

 
Bike MS     RE:  Bike Ride on Sunday, October 23, 2016 
The Governing Body granted permission to the National MS Society to hold their bike ride on 
October 23rd.  
 
Letter from the Editor   RE: Up and Away … Sort of 
Mr. Jon Warms, Chair of the Environmental Commission, discussed the dangers of helium 
balloons.  He stated that it is an environmental hazard to fish and wildlife.  He explained that 
helium balloons never disintegrate.  He explained that the Environmental Commission does not 
want helium balloons used at Borough events.  C. Zinna stated that while he is completely 
respectful of environmental issues, he has a hard time banning the use of balloons.  C. Haider 
suggested raising awareness of the dangers of the balloons.  Mayor Rustin recommended that the 
Governing Body ask the Recreation Department not to use helium balloons at their events.  Mayor 
Rustin suggested that the October newsletter discuss the damaging effects of helium balloons on 
the environment. 



  

American Diabetes Association  RE: Thank you letter 
The Mayor acknowledged the thank you letter from the American Diabetes Association. 
 
Trinity Lutheran Church   RE: Fair on October 1, 2016 
The Governing Body approved the Trinity Lutheran Church’s fair for October 1st. 
 
Kfir Sayag-Emanuel Delicatessen  RE: False Alarm Waiver 
The Governing Body denied Mr. Sayag’s false alarm waiver. 
 
RESOLUTIONS for meeting of September 13, 2016:  

A. Approve Expenditures as of September 7, 2016 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 Barzelatto discussed businesses that have expressed their concern over having the street fair 
on Highwood Avenue.  He stated that he has communicated with Max’s Grill, Tenafly 
Gourmet Farms, Valley National Bank, Mandoo Café, Miller’s Bakery and the liquor store 
with concerns regarding the street fair.  He commented that he has spoken with many 
business owners who will not allow non customers to park in their parking lots.  C. 

Barzelatto urged the Council to move the street fair to the circle to alleviate any issues with 
the businesses.  C. Haider mentioned that she liked the idea of having it in the circle.  Mayor 
Rustin pointed out that the circle is not viable, as street fairs are near businesses.  C. 
Barzelatto inquired as to why it would be moved from Washington Street to Highwood Avenue 
as businesses do not want it there.  Mayor Rustin reported that it was moved to Highwood 
Avenue due to the logistics with traffic control as well as the wider street.  The Mayor added 
that a permit has already been issued for Highwood Avenue.  Mr. McClure stated that while 
the location can be changed, it would be a poor decision to move it, once a location has been 
chosen.  Mayor Rustin stated that if businesses joined the Chamber of Commerce they would 
have a chance to voice their opinions on having a street fair.  C. Barzelatto stressed that it 
should not matter whether a business joins the Chamber of Commerce to have a say 
regarding the street fair.  The Mayor explained that it would be easier for the businesses.  He 
reported that the Chief stated that Highwood Avenue worked better from a logistical stand 
point.  C. Zinna suggested that it be on Tenafly Road or around the circle.  Ms. Christine 
Evron commented that people care how close in proximity the street fair is to downtown.  She 
stated that vendors have already paid and are expecting it to be on Highwood Avenue.  Ms. 
Evron added that restaurants love street fairs.  She noted that the Chamber of Commerce is 
going to be having an international food fest.  Ms. Evron further added that the circle is not 
big enough to hold the street fair.  She warned that if the traffic on Washington is disturbed, 
it will have a negative impact on the businesses, without the positive aspect of bringing 
people to the businesses. The Mayor questioned her on what contractual obligation she has 
committed to for the street fair.  She stated that she has a contract for the Highwood Avenue 
location.  C. Barzelatto questioned her on where the vendors are going to park.  She stated 
that the vendors will park at the municipal lot at the back of Wells Fargo.  Ms. Evron 
suggested moving the street fair to the same area that is closed off for the summer concerts.  
C. Zinna recommended that she figure of where the bouncy house can be placed.   

 

 Barzelatto stated that the Tenafly Police Department went above the call of duty as they were 
represented at RJ’s funeral, who was 5 years old and had succumbed to cancer.  He stated 
that every Police Department in Bergen County was at the funeral.  C. Barzelatto added that 
the Tenafly Fire Department as well as the Bergenfield Fire Department was also in 
attendance.  He added that NYC had 15 police cars at the funeral.  He noted that it was 
unbelievable showing.   

 

 Barzelatto praised the Tenafly Police Department as being the best of the best.  He stated 
that C. Haider and C. Basch made unprofessional and unacceptable comments regarding the 
Police Department.  C. Barzelatto added that the comments were insulting and lies.  He 
urged the Council to be supportive of the Police Department.  C. Haider questioned what 
comments he was referencing.  C. Barzelatto informed that she was quoted in the paper 
saying that the police do not do their jobs.  C. Haider stated that the quote was taken out of 
context.  The Mayor explained that bickering reflects poorly on the Governing Body.  C. 
Barzelatto advised that he is not being accusatory, but emphasized that the Governing Body 
should be supportive of the police Department.    

 
 

FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Mayor Rustin announced that former Councilmember, Bruce Baker’s memorial service will be held 
Saturday at 11:00 a.m. at the Church of Atonement.  He stated that Mr. Baker was highly involved 
in the community.  Mayor Rustin noted that he was involved in the Historic Preservation, 
Environmental Commission as well as the Welcome Committee. 



  

Mayor Rustin commented on a home on Cambridge Road, which has not gone into foreclosure yet.  
He noted that the home has been a real concern for the neighbors.  Mayor Rustin reported that he 
has spoken with the attorneys of the bank and advised them that they must clean up the property.  
He stated that they brought in dumpsters; however he added that the outside looks worse than 
before.  Mayor Rustin stated that they will be given a short time tomorrow to clean up the property 
and if they do not clean it up, the Borough will clean it up and a lien will be placed on the house.  
  
CLOSED SESSION  
Mayor Rustin recognized Borough Attorney William McClure, who read into the record Resolution 
16-298A. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED in compliance with NJSA 10:4-12, the Mayor and Council of the Borough of 
Tenafly are going into Closed Executive Session to discuss the following matters: 
 

  A. Collective Bargaining 
           1. Contract Negotiations Update  

   
Minutes will be taken of the meeting and released to the public at the time that the matter is 

resolved.   After Closed Executive Session, the Mayor and Council will reconvene in the Richard D. 
Wilson Committee Room to adjourn this public meeting. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Council, on a motion from C. Zinna, seconded 
by C. Park, and all present voting in favor, the meeting was adjourned to the Closed Session at 8:55 
p.m.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business to come before the Council, on a motion by C.  Basch, second by 
C. Haider, and unanimously carried, to adjourn this meeting.  The meeting was adjourned at  9:20 
p.m. 

 
 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 

Lissette Aportela,  
MPA, RMC, CMC 

Borough Clerk 

 

 
 
 

 


